

Shaping a Sustainable Future or South-Eastern Europe

Strategic Plan for IUCN in SEE





Shaping a Sustainable Future for South-Eastern Europe

A Strategic Plan for IUCN in SEE

Table of Contents

Acronyms and abbreviations	5
Summary	6
1. Introduction	7
	8
	8
	9
	9
S	11
-	11
G	12
	13
2.3.2 European Green Beit	14
3. IUCN Members and Commissions in SEE	15
3.1 IUCN Members	15
3.2 IUCN Commissions	16
4. The Niche of IUCN	17
Mid-term Strategic Directions	18
5.1 Protected areas	18
5.2 Species conservation	19
5.3 Sustainable ecosystem management	19
%\$```@_\ \ Si `Y\ eU^SYW	19
5.5 Capacity development	19
5.6 Strengthening the Union	20
6. Programme priorities 2013–2016	21
7. Operational plan	26
8. Communications	27
9. Monitoring and evaluation	30
Annex 1: IUCN Members in South-Eastern Europe	31
Annex 2: ILICN Members in countries neighbouring S	outh-Eastern Eurone 33

Acronyms and abbreviations

BfN Federal Agency for Nature Conservation

BiH Bosnia and Herzegovina

CBD Convention on Biological Diversity

CEC Commission on Education and Communication

CEESP Commission on Environmental, Economic and Social Policy

CEM Commission on Ecosystem Management

CEPA Communication, Education and Public Awareness
CIC International Council for Game and Wildlife Conservation

CSO Civil Society Organisations

DAI Dinaric Arc Initiative

ECENA Environment and Climate Regional Accession Network

ECNC European Centre for Nature Conservation

ECRAN Environmental Compliance and Enforcement Network for Accession

DAI Dinaric Arc Initiative EU European Union

EU IPA European Union's Instrument for Pre-Accession

FAO Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations

FASRB Framework Agreement for the Sava River Basin

FSC Forest Stewardship Council FYR Former Yugoslav Republic GA Government agency GDP Gross Domestic Product

GPAP Global Protected Area Programme

IBA Important Bird Area

ICPDR International Commission for the Protection of the Danube River

IPA Important Plant Area

ISRBC International Sava River Basin Commission
IUCN International Union for Conservation of Nature
IUCN CMC IUCN Centre for Mediterranean Cooperation

IUCN HQ IUCN Headquarters

 \P 3 > "C55" \P 3 > "@b_WbQ]] U"? V(SU"V_b"C_edX\t50cdUb^"5eb_` U

KBA Key Biodiversity Area MAB Man and Biosphere

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

MS Member State n/a not appplicable

NGO Non-governmental organization

PA Protected area
@21 @bij U'2eddJbji 11bJQ

RAPPAM Rapid Assessment and Prioritization of Protected Area Management REC Regional Environmental Centre for Central and Eastern Europe

RENA Regional Environment Network for Accession

SEE South-Eastern Europe

SNV Netherlands Development Cooperation

SSC Species Survival Commission
TBPA Transboundary Protected Area

UN United Nations

UNDP United Nations Development Programme UNEP United Nations Environment Programme

E > 5C3? $E \wedge VdUT > CdY_{C} = SCdY_{C} \wedge CVFICSVU \wedge dY_{C} = VdebU'? bVNQ^Y_{C} \wedge CVFICSVU \wedge dY_{C} = VdebU'.$

WCEL World Commission on Environmental Law WCPA World Commission on Protected Areas WDPA World Database on Protected Areas

WH World Heritage

WHP World Heritage Programme
WWF World Wide Fund for Nature

Summary

1. Introduction

IUCN is today the largest professional global conservation network dealing with environment and sustainable development, with more than 1,200 member organizations including 200+ government and 900+ non-government organizations and almost 11,000 voluntary scientists and experts, grouped in six Commissions Y^c_] U! &z 'S_e^d\text{\text{UC}\text{\text{VC}\text{\text{C}\text{\text{C}\text{\text{\text{UC}\text{\text{\text{VC}\text{\

Since 2004, a number of changes, environmental, political and structural, have occurred both across the region and in IUCN. All these changes have prompted the need to review the IUCN 2004 SEE strategy and launch a new process to set mid-term targets and priorities for IUCN in South-Eastern Europe. Hence, in December "ž! "flokU' £ 3 > "@b_WbO]] U'? \(\subseteq \text{SU' \nubset} \text{b' C_ed\nubset} \text{SOcd\nubset} \text{5eb_` Uflg \neq \text{MX' OXU' ce` `_bd \nubseteq}] \(\text{oXU'} = 1F1 \) 6_e^TOd\nubseteq \(\text{fl initiated the process of reviewing and updating IUCN's regional strategy. The process, facilitated by IUCN SEE, assumes broad consultation between the IUCN constituency and partners in SEE and beyond, including the IUCN SEE Members' meeting held in Tirana, Albania on 6–7 March 2013. The aim of this process was to cUd \(\text{VLISOL} \text{CdOdUMS' 4 \text{MUSOL} \cdot \cdot \text{VLISOL} \cdot \c

e^

2. Regional context

2.1 Background

DXU'C_edXt5QcdJb^55eb_` UQ^'tbJWY_^f1Qc_TU{^UT'Ri'dXU''' žž\$\$. \$3 > `CdtQdJWS'`` \Q^\Y_bC_edXt5QcdJb^55eb_` Uflencompasses Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, FYR Macedonia, Montenegro, Romania and Serbia. It is part of the IUCN Statutory Region East Europe, North and Central Asia. The region is known for its biodiversity values, rich tradition and history. Geographically, the region is very diverse. It encompasses the whole of the Dinarides, the Balkan, Rhodope and Pindus mountain ranges, as well as parts of the Carpathians and the Pannonian Plain. Its southern parts belong to the Mediterranean Basin, while the northern areas belong to dxU'4Q^eRU'BYUb2QcY14eU'd_TYUbcU'Y|eU^SUc'Y'dXU'tbJWY_^'dXb_eWX_edXYd_bifldXUcU'S_e^dbUc'U^S_] `Qcc' a range of ethnic groups, languages and religions, thus creating an immense cultural diversity but also diverse land use patterns. The centuries-long use of natural resources, coupled with urban sprawl, recent economic growth and infrastructure development has posed great pressures on biodiversity and placed it under increasing threat. Yet, due to the predominantly mountainous character of the region and harsh living conditions that stem \\begin{array}{c} \text{VG} \tex

Politically, the region has undergone major changes in the past twenty years caused by the disintegration of Yugoslavia, the subsequent armed processes. Today, the region is characterized by the relatively small size of countries with numerous state borders. Among several integrative processes in the region, EU accession ranks very high. Bulgaria and Romania joined the EU in 2007, Croatia in July 2013, while FYR of Macedonia, Montenegro, and Serbia have received the status of candidate countries. It is expected that Serbia will begin EU negotiations in 2014.

The region has experienced depopulation in the last 20 years mainly due to unfavourable economic conditions.

Population growth varies, showing positive trends in Albania and Kosovo*, FYR Macedonia and Montenegro. Rural population is decreasing in all countries at a higher rate than the overall country populations, showing a depopulation process of rural areas taking place across the region.

Table 2: Population growth and rural population growth – annual % in 2011 (Source: World Bank, 2013)²

Country	Population growth	Rural population growth
Albania	0.36	-1.89
Bosnia and Herzegovina	-0.21	-1.25
Bulgaria	-2.50	-4.55
Croatia	-0.34	-1.02
FYR Macedonia	0.16	-0.15
Kosovo*	1.51	no data
Montenegro	0.12	-0.40
Romania	-0.25	-0.31
Serbia	-0.45	-1.24

2.2 Sectors

2.2.1 Nature conservation

Table 3: Main designation types in SEE countries

Country	PA coverage (%) ³	Natura6 -1.2	2i4 -1.25 ТЭЛ(ӨӨ))74 770 8	205.1749 739.93	48 Tm54.5549try	

agencies subordinated to the ministries responsible for nature conservation. Nature conservation agencies also exist in the Republika Srpska entity of BiH and in Kosovo*. Similar structures are lacking in other countries. In

Adriatic coast, deforestation combined with harsh climatic conditions has left behind many barren slopes. As in the rest of Europe, natural lowland forests are in serious decline and have been replaced by pine and poplar plantations. Forests are managed intensively, which includes the vast majority of protected areas that still secure

actions needed to develop an integrated management of the basin in close cooperation among the Riparians.

DAI has proven to be an important regional process which has helped raise awareness, increase visibility and recognition, build partnerships and mobilize resources for the conservation of the Dinaric Arc. With its great leverage potential, DAI has paved the way for several subsequent processes such as the Big Win for Dinaric Arc, the Resolution for the Sustainable Development of the Dinaric Arc, Dinaric Parks, the Dinaric Arc transboundary conservation platform, as well as numerous site- and community-based projects and activities. One of the main achievements of DAI, led by WWF, was the signing of the 'Big Win for Dinaric Arc' Joint Statement of the representatives of the Governments of Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, Montenegro, Serbia and Slovenia in 2008. The Governments agreed to foster transboundary cooperation in implementing the CBD Programme of Work on Protected Areas, with the aim to establish a well-managed and ecologically representative protected area network. By signing the statement, the countries recognized the importance of regional collaboration for transboundary management of protected areas, encouraging the exchange of experiences and exploring options for the enhancement of transboundary conservation across the Dinaric Arc. DAI has recently entered a new phase by setting up a Support Unit and working on a new Vision and Strategy for the initiative. IUCN continues to be an active partner in DAI by providing continuous support in the process of achieving its objectives.

2.3.2 European Green Belt

The European Green Belt is a 12,500 km strip stretching from the Barents Sea at the Russian-Norwegian border, along the Baltic coast, through Central Europe and the Balkans to the Black Sea, i.e. along the former Iron Curtain, which separated the European continent into East and West for nearly 40 years. The European Green Belt Initiative was established in 2003. Today, the Green Belt connects 24 countries, is a backbone of a

3. IUCN Constituency in SEE

IUCN has three main constituent parts: IUCN Members, Commissions, and the IUCN Secretariat. IUCN Members and Commissions are considered the backbone of the Union. They form IUCN's broad decision-making and knowledge base and are a key to the successful implementation of the strategy and programme.

3.1 IUCN Members

IUCN is a democratic membership-based organisation and its Members form the highest decision-making body of the Union, through the World Conservation Congress held every four years. Membership in the Statutory Regions of West Europe, and East Europe, North and Central Asia totals 403 Members (327 in West Europe and 76 in East Europe, North and Central Asia) as of the most recent IUCN Council meeting.

The IUCN Strategy for South-Eastern Europe encompasses the following countries: Albania, Bulgaria, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, FYR Macedonia, Montenegro, Romania, and Serbia. In early 2013, IUCN had a total of twenty-three (23) Member organizations in South-Eastern Europe, 15 of which in the NGO category and 8 as Government Agency without Member State. IUCN membership in SEE covers all countries except for FYR Macedonia. At the moment there are no National Committees in SEE. Apart from the region-based members, a number of IUCN Members with international outreach have been active in region, such as BfN, ECNC-European Centre for European Conservation, EuroNatur, Global Footprint Network, International Council for Game and Wildlife Conservation (CIC), Plantlife, Tour du Valat, WWF, etc.

Naturally, IUCN SEE has established close ties and cooperation with Kosovo and the following neighbouring countries: Greece, Hungary, Moldova, Slovenia and Ukraine. Further cooperation with Turkey has yet to be explored.

IUCN has a strong membership base in SEE with a rather equal distribution across categories and countries, yet enlarging the membership and strengthening the network are integral parts and goals of the IUCN SEE strategy.

IUCN Members are a key component towards achieving IUCN's Vision and Mission, actively contributing to the implementation of the IUCN Programme and priorities, both in the region and globally. Members participate in

4.

5. Mid-term Strategic Directions in SEE

\$\Pi_3 > c_fYEY_^YE_W_ZECdg_bT_dXQdfQeUC_Q^T_S_^cUlf_UC_^QeBUH_?? eb = YccY_^YE_W_ZY_eU_SUffU^S_ebQWU_Q^T assist societies throughout the world to conserve the integrity and diversity of nature and to ensure that any use of natural resources is equitable and ecologically sustainable". IUCN is a knowledge-based organization with expert advice and capacity development at the core of its mission. IUCN is committed to maintaining the highest possible professional standards in delivering capacity development programmes at all levels and according to its programme areas. In SEE, IUCN stands for the long-term protection of biodiversity and sustainable use of natural resources. Priorities for IUCN in SEE stem from the global and regional needs and dbu^Tc_Y^^Qebu'S_^cUlf_QF_3> c_W_Qc_Qc_TU{^UT_Ri_QVU_P_3} c_W_Ql_] U"_ž! #}" \(\tilde{z}! #\) "\(\tilde{z}! +\) "\(\tilde{z}!

Figure 2: IUCN SEE Strategic Directions by 2020

5.1 Protected areas

IUCN is a global provider of credible knowledge and standards on protected areas. It spans a range of key knowledge products from the Protected PI9Tm(IUnD6cTge and s1(W)18(o1110052000326004600.)00032602nns ooEmo2nT1mge)19a.

5.2 Species conservation

IUCN's focus on species conservation has been thoroughly exercised throughout the decades. It is one of the pillars of the IUCN Programme 2013–2016 and the IUCN Red List of Threatened Species is recognized as one of the key knowledge products of IUCN, alongside Key Biodiversity Areas (KBA), another important IUCN knowledge product that IUCN intends to launch in the running quadrennial period. The IUCN Red List of Threatened Species is widely recognized as the most comprehensive, objective global approach for evaluating the conservation status of species. KBA is meant to be a global conservation standard (utilizing criteria derived from the IUCN Red List of Threatened Species and the IUCN Red List of Ecosystems) to identify the most \[\cdot\ \cdot\

5.3 Sustainable ecosystem management

Ecosystem management is becoming increasingly important and central to nature conservation efforts. It is driven by ever growing pressure on species and habitats, particularly relevant for fragmented habitats observed throughout Europe and increasingly present in South-Eastern Europe. IUCN's focus on ecosystems in SEE was formulated in the 2004 strategy under two priority themes: Sustainable use of natural resources and Water resources conservation and management. The IUCN Programme 2013–2016, which addresses ecosystem management in all three Programme Areas, in particular focuses on drivers of ecosystem change in Programme Area 3: Deploying Nature-based Solutions to Global Challenges in Climate, Food and Development. The Red List of Ecosystems is another global knowledge product that IUCN is planning to launch by 2016. It will assess the risk of collapse of ecosystems by using standardised criteria similar to those used by the Red List of Threatened Species, and it will be applicable at the local, national, regional and global levels. An important task for IUCN will be to better understand the drivers of ecosystem change, such as climate change, infrastructure development or energy production, in order to be able to address them and curb the process of further ecosystem degradation.

1` Qad\v_] 'dXU'dXbJU'dXU] QdS'CdbQdW\S'4\VbJSdY_^c'_ed\vUT'QR_fUfldXbJU'Sb_cct\Sed\vV\ceUc'g UbU'Q\c_TU\{^UT\}' The cross-cutting issues overarch the thematic issues and aim to address each of them, as outlined below.

5.4 Policy infuencing

 $7 \ensuremath{\mbox{$\setminus$}} 7 \ensuremath{\m$

5.5 Capacity development

Capacity building for conservation and sustainable development has been recognized as one of the four features of IUCN in the current quadrennial programme. In South-Eastern Europe, IUCN remains at the forefront of capacity development and is recognized as one of the leading organizations in delivering state-of-the-art capacity building programmes on nature conservation. In the next mid-term period, particular attention will be

given to capacity building on IUCN knowledge products and global and regional policies addressing an array of target groups, spanning both governmental and non-governmental organizations and the private sector.

5.6 Strengthening the Union

Engaging and leveraging the Union represents one of the four main business lines of IUCN with a view to TUNFUBY-W_^YE'` b_WKQ]] U'_RZUSdFUc'Q^TFIY' UccU^SUfIY: 'Ctd_VYE'] YccY_Y' Ψ 3 > c'g_t['Y'TU{^UT'Ri 'YE' convening, networking and empowering potential, strengthening Members' involvement in IUCN, policy development, and capacity-building of and services to Members, the Union's governing bodies, Commissions, and National and Regional Committees.

The six Strategic Directions span the next mid-term period which extends until 2020. In order to be able to implement these six mid-term Strategic Directions, all three components of IUCN — IUCN Members, Commissions and the IUCN Secretariat — should work closely and in a coordinated manner over the next mid-term period.

Table 5: IUCN SEE priorities according to IUCN Programme Areas 2013–2016

Programme Area 1: Valuing and Conserving Nature				
Global and regional result: Credible and trusted knowledge for valuing and conserving biodiversity leads to better policy and action on the ground				
Priority theme	Objective	Indicator		
Protected area management Q^T '{ ^Q^SY'W	" '9'SbJQcU'dXU'S_fUbQWJ'Q^T'] Q^QWJ] U^d effectiveness of protected areas " '5^cebJ'S_] ` \VQ^SU'_V^Qd_^Q\cdQ^TQbTc'_^' protected areas with IUCN PA best practice guidelines and knowledge products	Protected Area coverage increased Ri "" " "Y" {fU'S_e^db\('L'________________\'\\\\\\		
	" "@b_fYTU"dJSX^YSQ\`QccYcdQ^SU"d_"QedX_bYdYUc"_^" TUc\WYYWcecdQYQR'U"ci cdJ] c"_V{^Q^SY'W for protected areas	Key Biodiversity areas are used to extend protected areas coverage in two countries		
	, '5^cetU'\e^Sd_^Q\\\[c'g \X\'d\U'324' Programme of Work on Protected Area, the Aichi Targets and the EU Biodiversity Strategy to 2020	Protected areas managed in accordance with the IUCN PA SQUW_bluc'ci cdJ] 'Y'SbUQcUT'Ri "" ž "		
	, 'Ce``_bddXU'] `VJ U^dQY_^`_VdXU' Convention Concerning the Protection of the World Cultural and Natural Heritage and Upstream Process	National standards on PA management planning developed in two countries		
		At least one country joins the Green List of Protected Areas process		
		Mid-term priorities on protected area] Q^QWU] U^dcUdY^{fU'S_e^dbUc		
		A preliminary list of Natura 2000 sites elaborated in at least one country		
		At least one workshop on World Heritage for the SEE region		
		>_] Y^CdY_^:{\U'V_b'_^U'E`cdbUQ} '``\Y_d project prepared		
Transboundary conservation	, '9' `b_fU'dbQ^cR_e^TQbi'S`UbbQdY_^'Y^'dKU' region , '9'U^dW''UhYcd^WQ^T``_dU^dbQ\D2@1c'Y^'dKU'	A regional map of transboundary protected areas, including areas with potential for transboundary conservation		
	region "'Ce``_bdZ_Y'd`\Q^^Y\Wfl] Q^Q\W] U^dQ^T' monitoring of TBPAs	Initiated cooperation in three transboundary protected areas or sites		
	" '5^cebU'dXQdbUMY_^Q\D2'Uh` UbYU^SU' contributes to global TB conservation efforts	Case studies from SEE contribute to one global publication on TB conservation		

Species conservation	, "@b_fYTU'Uh` Ubdce``_bdd_'cKU'TUfU_`] U^d_V national Red Lists , "Ce``_bd'XU'Q``\SOdY_^_VY^dUb^OdY_^OX standards in species conservation , "@b_fYTU'\&^SdY_^OX\Y'[c'RUdg\UU^'= U] RUbc' and partners for species conservation and relevant IUCN SSC Specialist Groups , "1SXYUFU'\Of_ebOR\U'S_^cUbf'OdY_^'cdOdec'_V threatened species , "@b_] _dU'dXU'S_^cUbf'OdY_^'_V^Odf'U'WU^Ud\S' resources and information dissemination on alien and invasive species , "Ce``_bd\&^TbO\CY\W_bc`US\Uc'S_^cUbfOdY_^' , "9 `b_fU'WO] U'] O^OWU] U^dRi 'Q``\Y\W sustainable hunting principles and law enforcement	Five national Red Lists according to the IUCN Red List of Threatened Species criteria New IUCN Key Biodiversity Areas standard applied in two countries At least one country joins the Red List of Ecosystems process One new regional expert network on species conservation 30 experts trained on Red List principles Full participation of SSC experts from SEE in the development of regional Red Lists IUCN SEE-led project portfolio focusing on threatened species
	" "TU^dW" " by bid dXbUQdJ^UT c" USYUC Y C55" across a wide range of taxa and with emphasis on endemic species	Information on native genetic resources and alien invasive species publicly available Regular updates on funding opportunities provided to Members and Commissions Guideline(s) on sustainable hunting management in SEE A list of priority threatened species in the region
Ecological networks and green infrastructure	, '9'db_TeSU'] YMWCdY_^'] UCcetUc'_^'XORYDd fragmentation , '1`` \i'dKU'S_^SU'd_VUS__WISO\\^Udg_t[c'	One representative and functional ecological network in SEE Five green infrastructure projects
	and green infrastructure	, ,
	Effective and Equitable Governance of Nature's Use	
Globar and regional	result: Improved governance arrangements over natural	resources deriver rights-based and
Priority theme	Objective	Indicator
Shared and equitable governance	, '5^cetU'` eR\S'` Otd\SY Ot_^'Y'`d\U'` \Q^^Y\W and management of biodiversity and natural resources , '@b_] _dU'cXOtUT'\W_fUb^Q^SU'] _TUc'g X\SX' include the private sector, local communities and resource managers	Fifteen PA management plans elaborated in a participatory manner 20 private businesses, local communities or resource managers participate in a training programme on the governance of natural resources
	, '9'do_TeSU'O'dUb'Odf U'c_ebSUc'_VY'S_] U' for local communities, e.g. through the sustainable use of natural resources and increased valorisation of nature	Extent of revenues to local communities generated from alternative/innovative sources of income

Result: Global and regional policies in nature conservation are properly understood, transposed and implemented			
Objective	Indicator		
, 'Ce``_bddXU'}]`V] U^dQdY_^`_VRY_TYfUbcYd ŁbU\QdJT'S_^fU^dY_^c' and their proper incorporation into national and regional policy documents			

7. Operational plan

The One Programme Charter is a conceptual framework that underpins the implementation of this strategy. Proper understanding and implementation of this approach is instrumental in delivering the objectives set in this document. IUCN should work across all of its components, which include the IUCN Secretariat, IUCN Members and Commissions, in order to effectively implement this strategy. The IUCN Secretariat alone cannot deliver the strategy or the programme, nor could its Members or Commissions without cooperation amongst themselves and across the Union. Moreover, IUCN has to strive towards broadening its membership and expert base and work by expanding external networks and partnerships. Partnerships should be built at all levels - local, national, regional, and international. The IUCN Secretariat in SEE is represented by the Programme the Strategic Plan is essential, and in particular when it comes to cross-cutting issues where IUCN SEE will play a major role. IUCN SEE will continue providing the necessary facilitation and coordination role in linking IUCN Members and Commission experts in the region and beyond, IUCN Global Programmes and other BUWY_^O\`Q^T`@b_WbQ]] U'? V(SUct`9E3> = U] RUbc`Q^T`3_]] \ccY_^cfl_^`o\KU\b``Qbaflg\\\`O\$difU\\`S_^db\RedU`d_ the implementation of the joint Strategic Plan for SEE, according to their capacity and resources. Strong links will be maintained with thematic IUCN global programmes such as the Global Programme on Protected Areas (GPAP), the World Heritage Programme (WHP), Species Programme, Ecosystem Management Programme (EMP), and others while particular support will be sought from the Union Development Group when it comes to Union development-related activities. Particular attention will be given to cooperation with the IUCN Centre for = UTYUUbbQ^UQ^33___`UbQdY_^'\frac{4}{3} > 3 = 3 | Y = \QWQFQ^T\dXU\5E\BU'\bUcU^dQdY_^?\V(SU\Y^2\beccU\c\3__\\U000\buc\6 with the IUCN CMC is particularly important for its expertise on marine conservation, an area of great importance \(\frac{V}\) b C_ed\(\frac{V}\) 5C_d\(\frac{U}\) \(\frac{V}\) 5E_\) \(\frac{V}\) \(given the EU Member State status of several countries, and the on-going EU accession processes in the region. In its work, IUCN SEE will actively liaise with the Regional Councillor for East Europe, North and Central Asia. Another important aspect of the work of IUCN in SEE is cooperation with national authorities, EU and international organizations. IUCN SEE will continue cooperating with national and international institutions and $_$ bM2^YCdY_^cfIR_dX^RYQdUbQNi^Q^TdXb $_$ eWX^c^USY(S^_b_WbQ]] Uc^Q^TYYYdQdYfUcf^

8. Communications

CYSU'dXU'UcdDR\cx\] U^d_VdXU'\varPi3 > @b_WbO]] U? \(\su_bC_ed\k5\)cd\b^5eb_\ U^\varPi3 > \ccos\frac{1}{2}\) e^\6Cd\frac{1}{2}\. CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cx\cdot\cappa.

CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSd\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSC\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSC\frac{1}\cdot\cappa.

CSC\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSC\frac{1}{2}\cdot\cappa.

CSC\fr

- " Nature protection/environment ministries and relevant government agencies;
- $_{"}$ BUcUQLSX'Q^T'cSYU^d\(S'Y\cd\(ded\(Y_\^c+\)
- " Authorities responsible for the management of biodiversity local, national, and regional;
- " Natural resource managers;
- " Environmental NGOs;
- " IUCN Constituency (Secretariat, Members and Commissions);
- " Donor agencies.

In past years, IUCN has been communicating in South-Eastern Europe through a range of communication tools, as analysed below. Each can further support the implementation of the IUCN strategy for SEE as proposed below, but are subject to change according to the available resources. Whenever possible, IUCN aims to translate communication products into the national languages, which remains one of the priorities of IUCN's communication work in SEE.

Online presence (website and social media)

IUCN SEE publishes regular news and updates on its section of the IUCN website http://www.iucn.org/southeasterneurope, with an average frequency of 1-2 stories per month. Web stories highlight the IUCN SEE project milestones and achievements, share globally/regionally important information while aiming to promote its members' activities. Several project related websites have been created, e.g. http://www.savariver.com and http://www.savariver.com and http://www.savariver.com and http://www.dinaricarc.net. Stories also appear on regional and global websites and newsletters, as well as on the Global Members Portal Platform, reaching a worldwide audience. When relevant, the achievements of IUCN SEE work have been promoted through IUCN global social media channels and blog.

IUCN SEE e-bulletin

DXU'UŁ2e\Wdf \e^Sdr_^c'Qc'Qc'UhSXQ^WJ'`\Qdr_b] \U_bitJSUf Y\Wfl\dbf\WQ^T T\cull \YQdf\WY\Lb] \Qdr_\th\Qdr_d'\dr_d\nature conservation in the region and beyond. Recipients are invited to contribute to each issue of the bulletin. Articles are mostly written in the reporting style, as their main objective is information sharing. IUCN has an editorial control over the product's content. The e-Bulletin features the IUCN SEE Constituency updates, and includes global and/or European content considered of interest for the SEE community. It has been published quarterly since 2004, and disseminated by IUCN SEE to approximately 570 contacts in the region and beyond. The number of recipients will continue to grow in the future. In 2012, the e-Bulletin was enriched with a new cUSdr_^Uddr_V&CXU_V_Sectl_DX\cdot QTT\dr_\cdot VU^CXU_V_\CDT_\dr_\cdot VU^CXU_\cdot \CDT_\dr_\cdot \CDT_\dr_\cdot VU^CXU_\cdot \CDT_\dr_\cdot \CDT_\dr_\cdot VU^CXU_\cdot \CDT_\dr_\cdot \

Printed material

@b^dJT] QdbbO\tbce\tc\to_] \(\frac{1}{2}\) \(\

DXU' \P 3 > '@b_WbQ]] U'? V(SU'V_b'C55'g \\` bU' QbU'Q^' \P 3 > 'C55'YV_'cXUUdfIY'bb_TeSY'WdXU' \P 3 > 'S_^cdbeU^Si and its priorities in the region, and also work on a series of info sheets introducing the key knowledge products of IUCN.

Press releases

Press releases are disseminated for project milestones and IUCN announcements and achievements. The media contact network is growing, and media relations building will be the following step.

The key messages of IUCN's communications work in South-Eastern Europe could be summarized as follows:

- Nature conservation is essential to life:
- " IUCN is a leading authority on biodiversity conservation in the region;
- " IUCN is an active and reliable partner that promotes knowledge-sharing throughout the region;
- , IUCN promotes examples of best practice and new approaches to nature conservation;
- "Sharing information across the region helps harmonize approaches and improve practices;
- , ' Ψ 3 > 16U 16UcU^ab Q'Wb_g YW^Uab_Lb() Q'E ^Y_^'_V[^_g \UTWU'Q^T (UT 'Uh` Ub\U^SUF)

During the IUCN SEE Members' Meeting in Tirana in March 2013, and highlighting the online survey conducted and completed in February 2013, the IUCN Constituency shared its views on the possible joint actions that could be grouped into two pillars:

- 2. Steps that could raise public awareness on the importance of sustainable use of natural resources and good environmental practices in SEE, and beyond (proposed topics to be addressed: importance of PA categorisation, importance of national red list development, priorities in species conservation dkb_eWK*YT*SQd_b*Q^T*|QWcXY**c* USYUc+cXQb/WYV_b*| QdY_^*_^*Ve^TYWV_b*S_^cUlfQdY_^*Q^T*_dkUb*U^f*\(\frac{1}{2}\)_1 U^d\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_1 Ud\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_1 Ud\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_2 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_4 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_4 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_4 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_3 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_4 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_4 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}\)_5 Ucd\(\frac{1}{2}

Whenever possible, in its communication work IUCN SEE will rely on key CEC products such as the CEPA toolkit or the Strategic Communication Guideline.

Table 7: The main goals of the communication work of IUCN in SEE

Objective	Indicator
, '4Y UbcW' 'dXU'更3> 'C55'g UR` QWU' , '&ceU'更3> 'C55'UŁ2e\UdA'^'Q'aeQbdUbi 'RQcYc , '9\SbUQcU'c_SYQ\] UTYQ` bUcU^SU , '9\YbQdU'dXU] QdS'TYcSeccY_^c'Q^T'XQd] _^YJUT'QSdY_^c'_^' issues of common interest and regional importance	The number of visitors of the IUCN SEE gUR` QWUYSBUQCUT`Ri '! ž* Website updated weekly The number of recipients of IUCN SEE UL2e\Ud^YSBUQCUT`Ri '! ž* Develop a new social media account for IUCN SEE At least two thematic Foci prepared yearly A minimum of one joint communication activity of regional importance every two
	years
Ohiactiva	Indicator
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Indicator IUCN SEE info sheet available online and printed in English and at least three local languages
, '5'OR_bOdJ'O^'_fUbf'blg '_^'更3>'O^T'bb'] 'bcy_^'Y'C55'	IUCN SEE info sheet available online and printed in English and at least three local

9. Monitoring and evaluation

Annex 1: IUCN Members in South-Eastern Europe¹⁴

Albania

- " Institute for Nature Conservation in Albania (INCA) / Instituti për Ruajtjen e Natyrës në Shqipëri (INCA)
- " Preservation and Protection of Natural Environment in Albania (PPNEA) / Ruajtja dhe Mbrojtja e Mjedisit Natyror në Shqipëri (PPNEA)

Bosnia and Herzegovina

" Natural Heritage Protection Society - ARBOR MAGNA, Banja Luka / Društvo za zaštitu prirodnog

- Institute for Nature Conservation of Vojvodina Province / Pokrajinski zavod za zaštitu prirode
 Ecolibri Bionet: Centre for Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Development / Facilibri Ecolibri Bionet: Centre for Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Development / Ecolibri Bionet: $3 U^{d}D_{ij} Q'_{e} = fQ^{J}U^{R}Y_{e}T^{H}U^{H}_{ij} YU^{H}_{ij} YU^{H}_{i$

Annex 2: IUCN Members in countries neighbouring South-Eastern Europe¹⁵

Greece*